

# 2014

PatientPortal User Manual



This document, as well as the software described in it, is provided under a software license agreement with STI Computer Services, Inc. Use of this software and all related documentation is subject to and limited by the terms and conditions stated in such software license agreement. The content of this manual is furnished for informational use only, is subject to change without notice and should not be construed as a commitment by STI Computer Services, Inc. STI Computer Services, Inc. assumes no responsibility or liability for any errors or inaccuracies that may appear in this document.

No part of this document may be reproduced or transmitted in any form or by any means, electronic or mechanical, for any purpose without the express permission of STI Computer Services, Inc.

© 2014 STI Computer Services, Inc. All rights reserved.

Copyright protection claimed includes all forms and matters of copyrightable material and information now or hereafter allowed by statutory or judicial law, including without limitation, material generated from the software programs which are displayed on the screen, such as icons, screen displays, graphics, user interfaces, etc.

ChartMaker Medical Suite is a registered trademark of STI Computer Services, Inc.

All other trademarks and registered trademarks are the properties of their respective companies or mark holders.

**IMPORTANT**: The Meaningful Use Dashboard provides statistical information for aiding healthcare providers in meeting Meaningful Use Objectives. Healthcare providers are cautioned that the denominators shown on the Meaningful Use Dashboard are based solely on information entered into the ChartMaker® Clinical Module. If a patient encounter was not entered into the Clinical Module, that encounter is not included in the denominator for the statistical calculations on the Dashboard. In order to get accurate statistical information for the percentage calculation, to determine if you meet the Meaningful Use requirements, you may need to run additional reports. Please refer to the Center for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS) and this user manual for more information about calculating the correct percentage for each individual Meaningful Use Objective.

http://www.cms.gov/Regulations-and-Guidance/Legislation/EHRIncentivePrograms/index.html?redirect=/ehrincentiveprograms http://www.sticomputer.com/sticustomers.php

Page | 1

Updated 8/11/2014

#### Contents

Overview	3
Registration Instructions	4
Pages	5
Common Pages (Administrators and Patients)	5
Administrators Only	10
Patients Only	16
FAQs	21
Appendix	24
Announcement Template	24
Authorizing a Patient for the PatientPortal	24
Re-authorizing a Patient for the PatientPortal	25
Suspending Data Export	25
Authorizing a Patient Representative	26
Updating the Email Associated with a Registered PatientPortal Account	26
Resetting a Patient's Password	26
PatientPortal Usage Instructions	27
Configuring Message Distribution Lists	28
Responding to Messages Sent From the PatientPortal	29
Sending a Message to the PatientPortal	30
PatientPortal Requirements for Meaningful Use	31
Tips for PatientPortal Engagement	33
Index	34
Resources / Notes	36
Document Change Log	37

**Overview** 

#### ChartMaker® PatientPortal

The ChartMaker® PatientPortal is an online service that allows a patient to keep track of their personal health information. It will also allow practices to share and receive information easily with patients.



- Available with versions 4.3 and higher
- Requirement for Stage 1 (Core Measure: View, Download, Transmit) and Stage 2 (Core Measures: View, Download, Transmit and Secure Electronic Messaging) of the Meaningful Use program starting in 2014
- Configurable by the Practice
- Ability to send and receive messages to and from your patients
- Message Types include: Appointment and Refill Requests, Billing and Health Questions, and General Messages
- Upload health related educational resources for your patients
- Patients create their own username and password
- Patients can update their demographic information
  - Information includes: General information, Responsible Party, Employment Information, Insurance, Emergency Contacts, Pharmacy, Medications, Allergies, History Information
- Patients can view clinical summary information (\*automatically gives you credit for Core Measure: Clinical Summaries in the Meaningful Use program)
- Contact Software Support for more information (800-487-9135 or email <u>swsupport@sticomputer.com</u>)

Page | 3

Updated 8/11/2014

PatientPortal – 2014 Edition

HART AAKER

atientPortal

#### **REGISTRATION INSTRUCTIONS**

Complete the following steps to start the process of registering your practice with the ChartMaker® PatientPortal service. There is a fee of \$29/physician, \$15/NP, and/or \$15/PA per month.

- 1. Go to www.sticomputer.com
- 2. Click "CUSTOMERS"
- 3. Click "Login", enter your credentials and then click "Log In"

**ALTERNATE METHOD:** If you do not have login credentials, click "Registration", complete the registration form and click "Register".

- 4. Click "PatientPortal" (from the left navigation pane)
- 5. Click "Click here to register for ChartMaker® PatientPortal"
- 6. Enter the applicable information and click "Submit"

**NOTE**: Upon completion of this form, an STI Representative will contact you, via the email address you provided, to complete the setup process, as well as provide information about enrolling for PatientPortal training.



The ChartMaker® PatientPortal has pre-defined pages, which every practice can configure. The page options will differ depending on the type of user that is logging in. Administrators for your Portal will see pages allowing them to configure the Portal while Patients will see patient-specific pages and information.

Everyone will go to www.chartmakerpatientportal.com to access the PatientPortal.

**NOTE**: Patients should not be instructed to go to this page unless they have completed registration. There is no way to create a new user from this page.

#### COMMON PAGES (ADMINISTRATORS AND PATIENTS)

#### Log On:

The Log On page is the first page patients and administrators will encounter after typing in the web address into a browser. Everyone using the ChartMaker® PatientPortal will access this same page. From this page the user will be able to log in with their previously registered credentials and/or send a request for their password ("Forgot Password?").

	كأسها المحاد	
-) -) 🥑	https://chartmakerpatientportal.com, 🔎 🖌 🔒 S.T.I. Comp 🗟 🖉 🖉 Log On 🛛 🗙 👘	
le Edit Vie	w Favorites Tools Help	
Cha	rtMaker® PatientPortal	
L.	og On	
Yo	ou have reached the log on page for the ChartMaker® PatientPortal. ease enter your username and password to log into your practice.	
	Centralite	
Pa	assword	
Fo	orgot Password?	
S	ign in Remember me?	
-	Powered by <u>ChardMakev6 PatientPort</u> Server Time (07/16/2014 02:09:29	2

Page | 5

Updated 8/11/2014

#### Home:

The Home page is the first page a user will see after logging into the Portal.

Administrators will see a "Notifications" section where messages from STI Computer Services may be displayed.

Patients will see a welcome message/instructional text on the left. This section will be configured by your Administrator. On the right, the patient will see their name and address as well as any notifications regarding changes to their account.

Patients will be able to click "Edit Information" to modify their contact details. When they do so it will redirect them to the "Patient" page.

If the patient has new activity on their account, they will be able to click on the numeral in the notification which will redirect them to the applicable page (Clinical Summaries, Labs, etc.) to view the information.



Patient View:

Page | 6

Updated 8/11/2014

#### **Documents (Administrator):**

The Documents page will allow the Administrator to organize and modify the document options that the patient can access from the patient's (or patient representative's) Documents page. The documents can be grouped by categories for easier access. Acceptable document types include .doc, .docx, pdf or .txt. Your account has 10 MB by default for you to upload documents. "Available Space" indicates the remaining space available. If you need additional space, please contact STI for pricing options. This information is not patient-specific and will be seen by all registered patients and/or patient representatives.

To configure this page, start by clicking "Add Category", enter a Category Name and Description

and click "Save". Then click "Upload" ()) to begin adding documents. Click "Choose File", enter a Display Name, Description (optional) and click "Save". Repeat those steps for any additional documents.

To reorder documents within a specific category, simply click and drag the row to the desired location. To reorder the categories, click "Reorder Categories" and click and drag the row to the desired location.

To modify an item, click "Edit" (🖉). To remove an item, click "Delete" (💌).

	Concrete Co
	STI Medical Practice
	Nome Patients Documents Settings Available Space 80/2438 Edworkmont Materials Patient Documents Edworkmont Materials
Main View:	CHE Documents     The Nature address you to speade documents that your patients with the address access. You begin by address a     default address     Address address address address address address address address address address address address     Address address address address address address address address address address address address     Address address address address address address address address address address address     Address address address address address address address address address address address address     Address address address address address address address address address address address address
	your the (one, cack, part or thip is derived a time to addres) if or example you might upside patient, hoting door and enter "new "infert in the history" for the life. A development may be interest that gives instructionalizationalization to you patient.
	<ul> <li>Hardina Vere las documentas da não acomo respuestas do não e est. Lo recordor them sumpor caso ano cang the row to a different focadam e roy nos to upload your documenta. Available Space toits you the remaining space available. If you need additional space, please contact STI for priorig options.</li> </ul>
	Terms 4 Use Percent by Constituent Extended as Series Time 077(2014 11322)
	Control Contro
	STI Medical Practice (stopped for a stopped
	Nome Patients US2222 Februational Materials
Category View:	EHR Documents FUTTIS Add Calager Below is a list of forms that may need to be filed out upon registration.
category new.	Hame Pite State State F Consent Form Consent Form for Medical Treatment doc 26 KB C E
	T Regultation Form Hegistration + ofm part of Kis Ki Ki
	HIPAA C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C
	Add rev sub category Become Sub Category
	Tematikat Provide Caddinate Determine and Tematikat

Page | 7

Updated 8/11/2014

#### **Documents (Patient):**

The Documents page will allow the patient (or patient representative) to view or download materials that the practice has made available. These documents could be registration forms, educational materials, etc.



The steps taken after the patient clicks on an individual document will vary depending on the Internet browser they are using. For instance, when a document is selected through the Google Chrome browser, most likely the document will be displayed at the bottom of the browser dialog, with the option to click the arrow to view download options:

Patient Portal is Awdocx	- Show all downloads ×

When a document is selected through the Internet Explorer browser, most likely the document will open in a separate browser tab/window and a pop-up prompting the patient for the next steps may be displayed:

nterne	t Explorer
Wha Awa	at do you want to do with Patient Portal is some.docx?
Size: Type From	12.3 KB : Microsoft Word : www.chartmakerpatientportal.com
•	Open The file won't be saved automatically.
+	Save
•	Save as
	Cancel

Page | 8

Updated 8/11/2014

#### **My Account:**

The My Account page allows a user to change the email address associated with the PatientPortal as well as their password. A valid email is not required for Administrator accounts, however they are required for patient accounts.

To change the email, enter the updated email address in the "New email" field and click "Change email".

To change the password, enter the updated password in both the "New password" and "Confirm new password" fields and click "Change password".

The patient can also see the activity that has occurred (by them or their authorized representative) on their account by clicking "Activity History Log" from the left navigation pane. Administrators do not have this option.

(315) 246-8754 🐛						
	Home	Patient	Messages	Documents	Clinical Summaries	Lab Reports
Account Maintenance	Account M	ainter	nance			
	Change Emai					
	Current ema New ema	II mpatier	nt@gmail.com			
	Change Passv	vord	Change	email		
	Current passwor	d				
	Confirm nev passwor	v d	Change pas	sword		

#### Sign Out:

The Sign Out link will sign the user out of the PatientPortal and redirect them back to the Log On page.

Page | 9

Updated 8/11/2014

#### ADMINISTRATORS ONLY

#### **Patients:**

The Administrator's "Patients" page will have a list of all registered patients and patient representatives with the option to reset their password if necessary. This page also gives the Administrator the ability to send a broadcast message to all registered patients by clicking in on the "Announcements" link.

To reset a patient or patient representative's password, click "Reset Password" and then "Yes" to confirm. An email notification will be sent to the patient or patient representative with their new password.

**NOTE**: Patients can reset their own password by going to the "My Account" page. Administrator assistance is only necessary if the patient forgets their username and/or their security question.

To send a broadcast message, click "Announcements" from the left navigation pane, type a Subject and Message and then click "Send". The message will be sent to all registered PatientPortal users (including patient representatives).

**NOTE**: Broadcast messages will even be sent to patients that have been suspended (i.e. the patient's PatientPortal button appears red in Practice Manager and Clinical).

STI Medical P	ractice					My a	sticomput ccount   Sign o
				Home	Patients	Documents	Settings
Patients Patient Representatives Announcements	Patients						
	Show 10 💌 enti	ries			Se	arch:	
	Name 🔺	Account #	Date of Birth 0	Username 🗢	Email Address	2	0
	Elmes, Georgette	10019	06/15/1989	Georgette Elmes	gelmes@sticom	iputer.com	Reset Password
	Ent, Pat	10021	06/11/1970	Pent	dcassidy@stico	mputer.com	Reset Password
	Farley, Sarah	100003	11/01/1990	sfarley	sfarley@sticom	puter.com	Reset Password
	Frankenreiter, Petra	10062	11/01/1957	pfrankenreiter	csproul@sticom	puter.com	Reset Password
	Lindhome, Jonathan	10013	01/01/1990	serith	jlindhome@stice	omputer.com	Reset Password
	Marble, Ken	10029	01/01/1980	kmarble	kmarble@sticon	nputer.com	Reset Password
	Marble, Ken	10015	06/21/1981	kmarble2	kmarble@sticon	nputer.com	Reset Password
	McClane, John	10012	01/01/1980	John McClane	gelmes@sticom	puter.com	Reset Password
	Mouse, Mickey	10027	06/11/1970	dmmouse	dcassidy@stico	mputer.com	Reset Password
	O'Dwyer, Declan	10065	09/10/2012	dodwyer	csproul@sticom	iputer.com	Reset Password
	Showing 1 to 10 o	f 17 entries					00

Page | 10

Updated 8/11/2014

#### Settings:

The Settings page will allow the Administrator to configure the overall theme of the PatientPortal, practice information, and various message details. They will also be able to turn on maintenance mode and/or configure the data delay interval. Specifics for each page are detailed below.

#### General:

- **Practice Title**: Practice Name, which will appear on the masthead
- **Practice Phone Number**: Appears under the Practice title
- **Practice Logo**: An image file 200 KB or less which will be positioned to the left of Practice Title. Click "Browse" to search for and upload a file
- Portal Theme: Set the color scheme for the Portal selecting from the 13 preconfigured options. You will see the change take affect once you click "Save".
- Patient Data Delay: Configuration used to batch demographic updates before the information is sent to the Health Portal (in case of multiple updates by patient). The default is 30 minutes and can be changed, however it is suggested to keep a longer interval if possible. This configuration only affects demographic information and not messages sent by the patient.
- Enable Maintenance Mode: Check the box to suspend the ability for any user to log into the PatientPortal. Patients can still be authorized and/or complete registration, however they will receive a "this site is under maintenance, please check back later" webpage when attempting to log in.

STI Medical F	Practice					My ac	count   Sign ou
				Home	Patients	Documents	Settings
General Welcome Message Provider List Message Settings Patient Terms of Use	Set up your Pro Practice title (practice n STI Medical Practice	actice name disp	main page				
	Practice Phone Numbe (315) 246-8754 Upload your practice lo Bro	r go (must wwse	be 200kb or less)				
	Portal theme (color sch STI Default	eme for t	ne website, changes	will be displaye	d when saved)		
	Patient data delay (nun 1	nber of m	nutes to wait before (minutes)	sending informa	ation to ChartMa	ker)	
	Enable maintenance	mode (p	atients may not log i	n but data can si	till be sent from	ChartMaker)	

Click "Save" to accept any changes made before navigating to a different page.

Page | 11

#### Welcome Message:

The Welcome Message page allows an Administrator to configure the text that will appear on the main page of the PatientPortal when a patient logs in. Examples of information that could be displayed here would be (but not limited to): reminders to call 911 in case of emergency and not to use the PatientPortal, practice hours and/or contact information or basic instructions on how to navigate the Portal. This information is not patient-specific and will be seen by all registered patients and/or patient representatives. There is a text limit of 512 characters.

To see what the Welcome Message will look like prior to finalizing, click "Preview".

**NOTE:** You may have to allow pop-ups in your browser to view a preview of this page.

Click "Save" to accept any changes made before navigating to a different page.

t View Favorites Tools Help					sticompute
STI Medical (315) 246-8754 <b>x</b>	Practice			My ac	count   Sign ou
		Home	Patients	Documents	Settings
General Weicome Message Provider List <u>Message Settings</u> Patient Terms of Use	<pre>Welcome Message The following message will be presented to the para The following message will be presented to the para The message The following the following the parameters of the following t</pre>	lient when they vis r changes before y content of the page baite	it their home pa ou save them. I 2.	ge. Previewing will oper	a new
Terms of Use				Powered by ChartMak	er® PatientPortal

#### Provider List:

The Provider List page allows an Administrator to maintain a list of providers that will be utilizing the PatientPortal. The list created here will be the list of providers displayed to the patient when attempting to send a message through the Portal.

**NOTE**: This list is not linked to Practice Manager/Clinical so if you add a Provider you must remember to manually add them to the PatientPortal as well.

To add a new provider, click "Add Provider". Enter their Name, NPI # and click "Save". **NPI is required** in order to save the information.

To modify provider information, click "Edit" (



Updated 8/11/2014

#### **Message Settings:**

The Message Settings page allows an Administrator to customize the descriptive text that appears below each message type. This information will be displayed on the "Messages" page that is accessed by a Patient.

To see what the Messages page will look like prior to finalizing, click "Preview".

**NOTE:** You may have to allow pop-ups in your browser to view a preview of this page.

To restore the text back to the original pre-configured text provided by STI, click "Restore default" ( ) next to the applicable message type.

Click "Save" to accept any changes made before navigating to a different page.



Page | 14

#### Patient Terms of Use:

The Patient Terms of Use page allows an Administrator to customize the Authorization Agreement text the patient accepts prior to finalizing registration and begin using the PatientPortal.

By default, the PatientPortal will come with a generic Authorization Agreement that should be modified for your practice.

After customizing the text, click the box for "I accept responsibility for the patient authorization agreement provided below.".

Click "Save" to accept any changes made before navigating to a different page.



#### PATIENTS ONLY

#### Patient:

The Patient page allows a patient (or patient representative) to modify their demographic and medical information. The patient can modify their information either by expanding the sections using the arrows (()) in the main navigation pane and then clicking "Edit" or by clicking on the appropriate link from the left navigation pane.

Information that can be modified includes: General (contact) Information, Additional (demographic) Information, Responsible Party, Employment Information, Insurance Emergency Contacts, Physicians, Preferred Pharmacy, Medications, Allergies, Patient History, Surgical History and Family History.

Fields marked with an asterisk (\*) are required. For existing Phone, Insurance, Emergency Contact, Physician, Medications, Allergies, Surgical History and Family History information,

a user can modify the information by clicking "Edit" (<sup>1</sup>). To remove information, click "Delete" (<sup>1</sup>).

Click "Save" to accept any changes made before navigating to a different page.

**NOTE**: The patient will need to click "Send Now" (<u>There are unsent changes. Send now</u>) after they are done making changes in order for the information to be sent to the Health Portal.



Page | 16

Updated 8/11/2014

#### **Messages:**

The Messages page allows the patient (or patient representative) to view, print, delete and send secure messages to the practice. Messages generated from this page will be sent to the users configured for the respective Distribution Lists, which are set up through Practice Manager or Clinical. See the section on "Configuring Message Distribution Lists" from within the Appendix on page 28 for more information. The patient will be able to select from one of the following message types: Appointment Request, Refill Request, Billing Question, Health Question and/or General Office Message.

To open the selected message in a separate browser window, click "Open". To print the selected message, click "Print". To delete the selected message, click "Delete".

To view messages sent from this patient to the practice, click "Sent items" from the left navigation pane.

To send a new message to the practice, the patient will click "Send a message" from the left navigation pane. They will then click the applicable message type, select the Provider, enter a phone number for contact purposes, the message and then click "Send".

Attps://www.chaitmake     Edit View Favorites Tools     STI Medical F     (315) 246-8754	rpatientportal.com /l. /2 + ldentified by Digi ( Help Practice	Inbox 🧭	×	mpatient2 y account   Sign out
inbox Sent items Send a message	Home         Patient         Mest           Inbox         7/17/2014 10 16:13 AM         16:13 AM           Test if this works         3/18/2014 3:56:55 PM         Appointment Request           User 1         9/12/2013 10:56:35 AM         9/12/2013 10:56:35 AM           Health Question         8/20/2013 1:14:53 PM         Appointment Request           User 1         8/20/2013 1:14:53 PM         Patient portal instructions           STI Computer Practice         6/5/2013 10:54:25 AM	Follow-up From: 1, User Sent: 7/17/2014 10:1 H, H, ou have any ques feel free to call the o	nts Clinical Summaries	Lab Reports
How to use your patient portal			Powered by <u>Char</u> Server Time: 03	Maker® PatientPortal 7/17/2014 01:28:31

Page | 17

Updated 8/11/2014

#### **Clinical Summaries:**

The Clinical Summaries page allows the patient (or patient representative) to view, print, download or delete the clinical summary sent to the PatientPortal for each office visit. The list of clinical summaries located in the left navigation pane will be organized by date, with the most recent being at the top.

ChartMaker® Clinical will automatically send the Clinical Summary to the PatientPortal upon note signing for any registered patient that is not in suspended mode. (See the section on "Suspending Data Export" from within the Appendix on page 30 for more information.) This will automatically give the provider credit for the Core Meaningful Use measure.

To open the selected clinical summary in a separate browser window, click "Open". To print the selected clinical summary, click "Print". To save the selected clinical summary locally, click "Download". To delete the selected clinical summary, click "Delete".



**NOTE**: As of 5.4, Clinical Summary documents will collect information based on a selected note and not by which notes have the same visit date.

Page | 18

Updated 8/11/2014

#### Lab Reports:

The Lab Reports page allows the patient (or patient representative) to view, print, download or delete any lab information sent to the PatientPortal. The list of lab reports located in the left navigation pane will be organized by date, with the most recent being at the top.

ChartMaker® Clinical will automatically send the lab report to the PatientPortal upon signing of the lab report (or chart note including lab values) for any registered patient that is not in suspended mode. (See the section on "Suspending Data Export" from within the Appendix on page 30 for more information.)

To open the selected lab report in a separate browser window, click "Open". To print the selected lab report, click "Print". To save the selected lab report locally, click "Download". To delete the selected lab report, click "Delete".



Updated 8/11/2014

**NOTES**: Lab results will be sent to the PatientPortal upon signing. "Appropriately configured" lab results refers to the lab condition being designated as a Type of "Lab" with an applicable LOINC code attached as well. Lab conditions are configured by going to Edit > System Tables > Conditions > Results. After you find the applicable lab condition, highlight it and click "Properties".

- In 5.1 and below, all appropriately configured lab results will be displayed under the "Clinical Summaries" page.
- In 5.2 and 5.3, if lab results are received electronically (via an interface), the lab results will be displayed under the "Lab Reports" page. If lab results are manually entered into a ChartMaker® Clinical note (and appropriately configured), the lab results will be displayed under the "Clinical Summaries" page.
- In 5.4 and beyond, if lab results are received electronically (via an interface), the lab results will be displayed under the "Lab Reports" page. If lab results are manually entered into a ChartMaker® Clinical note that does *not* contain any additional information within it (i.e. medications, allergies, diagnoses, etc.), the lab results will be displayed under the "Lab Reports" page. If lab results are manually entered into a ChartMaker® Clinical note that *does* contain additional information (i.e. medications, allergies, diagnoses, etc.), the lab results will be displayed under the "Lab Reports" page. If lab results are manually entered into a ChartMaker® Clinical note that *does* contain additional information (i.e. medications, allergies, diagnoses, etc.), the lab results will be displayed under the "Clinical Summaries" page. Scanned lab results will be displayed on the PatientPortal under the "Other Information" page and will be labeled as "Health Information Updates".

What information is uploaded to the Portal for an individual patient? A: Clinical Summary, lab results and demographic information will be uploaded to the PatientPortal. For Clinical Summaries, this includes patient name, chart number, gender, date of birth, address, phone numbers, race, ethnicity, preferred language, allergies, immunizations, medications, problems (diagnoses), procedures, reason for referral, results, social status and vitals. Chief complaint, cognitive status, functional status, instructions, and plan of care (which contains sections for: educational materials, future appointment dates, pending in house lab orders, and off-site orders) are also included but only if documented through a properly configured template tool (corresponding "button" or checklist).

Lab Results will contain description, value and unit of measure, however, starting in version 5.5, the entire lab report will be sent to the PatientPortal.

Demographic information includes patient name, gender, date of birth, race, ethnicity, preferred language, phone numbers and address. Demographic information is only updated if one of the 3 document types (Clinical Summary, Lab Result, or Scan) is sent to the PatientPortal. If no document is sent, then the PatientPortal will not receive any demographic updates, even if the information was modified in Practice Manager/Clinical.

#### Am I required to use the PatientPortal?

**A**: If your practice is attempting to meet Meaningful Use, usage of a PatientPortal is required for both Stage 1 and Stage 2 starting in 2014. If your practice has no plans to attain Meaningful Use then it is up to your discretion as to whether you incorporate this functionality.

#### How will the patient know how to navigate the PatientPortal?

**A**: Besides patient education by the staff at your practice, the patient will also receive a welcome email (on the PatientPortal) upon registration. There is also a link at the bottom of the webpage titled, "How to use your patient portal" that will provide them with the same information included in the welcome email.

#### Can you suspend the data export for all patients at once?

**A**: No. The data export suspension process is done per patient on the Patient tab in Practice Manager.

Page | 21

#### How do we prevent lab results from being uploaded?

**A**: In order to stop lab results from being uploaded to the PatientPortal, the data export must be suspended. To do so, **open the patient's account** in Practice Manager through the Patient tab. Then click "**Patient Portal**" and check the box for "**Suspend export on note signing**" and then "**OK**". Alternatively, this can be done through Clinical by opening the patient's chart and clicking the "Patient Portal" icon from the bottom of the Face Sheet. This will also stop the automatic upload of Clinical Summary information as well.

## Does the patient receive a notification if our practice uploads a new Document to the Portal?

**A**: No. Documents uploaded to the PatientPortal (accessed through the "Documents" menu) are not patient-specific and can be seen by anyone accessing the Portal. Because of this, uploaded documents should be generic in nature.

#### Is there a way to disable certain message types?

**A**: No, however your practice can customize the descriptive text that appears below each message type so you could use this area to communicate important information regarding the types of messages that should be used.

## How do I determine who receives the messages sent by a patient through the Portal?

A: Recipients are configured through Distribution Lists, which are accessed through the messaging dialog (**To-Do** > **New Message/Task...** > **To**). Reference the section on "Configuring Message Distribution Lists" on page 28 for more information.

#### Can I initiate a conversation with a patient through the portal?

A: Yes! As of version 4.5, the practice has the ability to send a secure message to the patient via the PatientPortal. To do so, **open the patient's chart** in Clinical and go to **To-Do > New Patient Portal Message**. The patient will receive an email notification informing them that they have a new message waiting for them on the PatientPortal.

#### Can a patient reset their username and/or password?

A: Patients have the ability to reset their password in one of two ways. If they know their password, they can reset it by going to "**My Account**" after logging into the Portal. If they do *not* know their password, they can click "**Forgot Password**?" from the login page. They will be prompted to enter the answer to the Security Question they set up during registration. If the patient does not know the answer to their Security Question then they will need to contact the Administrator at your practice. Administrators can reset passwords from the Admin console (**Patients** page). Currently usernames cannot be reset. If the patient forgot their username, the Administrator can look it up through the Patients page on the Portal.

Page | 22

Updated 8/11/2014

## What happens if the patient changes their email address? Do I have to re-register them?

**A**: No, re-registration is not necessary. If the patient changes their email address through the "My Account" page on the PatientPortal, communication between your database and the PatientPortal will continue. Your practice will not be notified via a To-Do List reminder when patients make this type of change so it is recommended that you inform your patients to directly contact your office with this type information. Your staff will then manually update the patient's email in either Practice Manager or Clinical.

#### Will patients be prompted to change their password periodically?

A: No, the system does not remind patients to change their password.

#### Can multiple patients use the same email to be authorized?

**A**: Yes. Each patient's (email) welcome message will contain their first name which is how they will determine who the welcome message is for.

#### Can we fulfill patient recalls (reminders) through the PatientPortal?

A: Not at this time however it is planned as a future enhancement.

#### Does the ChartMaker® PatientPortal support multiple languages?

**A:** Currently, the PatientPortal does not offer multiple language support. However, your practice could include instructional information in a different language wherever the option to configure text is available. A tool such as Google Translate could be used to identify the desired text which could then be copied and pasted onto your Portal.

#### Can we change the font (color, bold, etc.) that appears on the Portal?

A: No, this type of functionality is not currently available.

#### Can we link our practice's website to the PatientPortal and vice versa?

**A**: Yes! To include a link to your website on the PatientPortal you will need basic HTML code. If you are unfamiliar with HMTL, someone from Clinical Software Support can assist you. Your website administrator can inform you as to how to include a link to the PatientPortal on your website.

#### How often are programmatic changes made to the PatientPortal?

**A**: Enhancements to the PatientPortal are made on a regular basis, typically about 3 times per year, but the release schedule may vary depending on necessity.

#### Is there a fee to use the PatientPortal?

**A**: Yes. Reference the section on "Registration Instructions" on page 4 for more information.



#### ANNOUNCEMENT TEMPLATE

In order to aid in the patient engagement process, STI has created a generic template that could be used to announce the launch of your practice's PatientPortal site. This template is a Microsoft Word document and should be modified before using for your practice. In the least, all the text in red should be replaced.

#### To access the template:

- 1. Go to www.sticomputer.com
- 2. Click "CUSTOMERS" and login
- 3. Click "PatientPortal" from the left navigation pane
- 4. Under the Training and Help Documents section, click "PatientPortal Announcement Template"

**ALTERNATIVE METHOD**: After step 2, click "Help Documents" and then under the Meaningful Use (2014) section, click "PatientPortal Announcement Template".

#### AUTHORIZING A PATIENT FOR THE PATIENTPORTAL

- 1. In Practice Manager, open the patient's account through the Patient tab
- 2. Click "Patient Portal"
- 3. Click "Authorize"

Account settings	
Send an authorization emai for patient portal registration	il to the patient Authorize
Suspend export on note	e signing

4. Click "OK"

**NOTE**: An email notification will be sent to the patient (to the email documented on the Patient tab) requesting that they complete the registration process. The patient must click on the link and complete the registration form before they can access their health information on the Portal. In versions 5.2 and below, do not attempt to authorize patients that have the "NEW" prefix in their account number.

Page | 24

Updated 8/11/2014

PatientPortal - 2014 Edition

**Commented [S1]:** Can we also tell them that it's under the PP link?

**Commented [S2]:** Can we also tell them that it's under the PP link?

#### **RE-AUTHORIZING A PATIENT FOR THE PATIENTPORTAL**

If the registration email needs to be sent again, this can be done at any point while the PatientPortal button is still yellow by clicking the "Authorize" button again.

If the patient would like the registration email to be sent to a different email address from the original request, change the email address *first* in Practice Manager and then click "Authorize" again.

atient Portal		
Registration status:	Not registered	
Account settings		$ \longrightarrow $
Send an authoriza for patient portal re	ation email to the patient egistration.	Authorize
Suspend expo	rt on note signing	
	01	Cancel

#### SUSPENDING DATA EXPORT

To stop the automatic export of patient information (clinical summaries, lab data, etc.):

- 1. In Practice Manager, open the patient's account through the Patient tab
- 2. Click "Patient Portal"
- 3. Click "Suspend export on note signing"

Registration status:	Registered
Account settings	
Send an authorizat for patient portal re	tion email to the patient Authorize
	t on note signing
Suspend expor	t on hote signing

4. Click "OK"

**NOTE**: The PatientPortal button will appear red in Practice Manager and Clinical if the patient's data export has been suspended. To unsuspend the export, uncheck the box for "Suspend export on note signing" and click "OK".

Page | 25

#### AUTHORIZING A PATIENT REPRESENTATIVE

Patient Representatives can be added to a patient's chart at any time however the patient must be registered on the PatientPortal prior to authorizing a representative for PatientPortal usage.

- 1. In Clinical, open the patient's chart
- 2. Click the "ID" tab
- 3. Click "Add" under the Patient Representative section
- 4. Enter the representative's information, including Email
- 5. Click "Enable representative for patient portal"
- 6. Click "OK"
- 7. Save and/or close the patient's chart

**NOTE**: A registration email will be sent to the patient representative. They must click on the link from within the email and complete registration before gaining access to the PatientPortal.

## UPDATING THE EMAIL ASSOCIATED WITH A REGISTERED PATIENTPORTAL ACCOUNT

If the patient is already registered (i.e. PatientPortal button is green) and wants to update the email associated with their PatientPortal account, the patient must modify their email through the "My Account" page on the PatientPortal. Administrators can change the patient's email in Practice Manager/Clinical however this will not update the patient's PatientPortal account. See instructions regarding the "My Account" page for more information on how to update an email associated with a PatientPortal account.

#### **RESETTING A PATIENT'S PASSWORD**

An Administrator can reset the patient's password by logging into the PatientPortal, clicking "Patients" and then "Reset Password" for the applicable patient. A Patient can reset their password either by logging into the PatientPortal and going to "My Account" or, if they forgot their username, then they can click "Forgot Password?" from the login screen to complete the process.

Updated 8/11/2014

#### PATIENTPORTAL USAGE INSTRUCTIONS

To view basic instructions on navigating the ChartMaker® PatientPortal, click "How to use your patient portal" from the bottom of the page. This option is only available for the patient (or patient representative), not Administrators.

(→) (△) https://www.chartmakerpatien Edit View Favorites Tools Help	tportal.com/P ,O	<ul> <li>Identified</li> </ul>	by Digi C 🤅 Us	er Instructions	×	# A
TI Modical Pro	tico					mpatien
15) 246-8754 (	LICE					iy account j Sign o
	Home	Patient	Messages	Documents	Clinical Summaries	Lab Reports
How to use your pa	tient por	tal				
Welcome to our patient portall any one of these on the patien	You are now not portal website	eady to begin r to get started:	managing your hea	Ith information. The	following options are availab	le to you. Click on
Home tab (your account	activity at-	a-glance)				
<ul> <li>STI Medical Practice's w</li> <li>Your name along with yc</li> <li>page so you can begin to</li> <li>Number of unread messo</li> <li>Number of unread clinici</li> <li>Any update notifications</li> </ul>	elcome messa our address and o set up your p ages al summaries that you shoul	ge as well as a d phone numb atient health re d be aware of	any practice specif er if available. The ecord.	c messages Edit information linf	takes you directly to the Ger	eral Information
Patient tab (your person	al informati	ion)				
<ul> <li>Allows you to add, review left menu bar and click o data to STI Medical Prace</li> </ul>	w and update y in the sections stice. The <u>Senc</u>	our informatior you wish to fill I now link displ	n such as demogra out. Once you hav ays when you hav	phics, responsible p e entered your infor e unsent changes a	party, insurance, history, etc. I mation you may click <u>Send n</u> nd is located at the top of the	Navigate down the <u>ow</u> to send the page.
Messages tab (communica	ate with our	office)				
<ul> <li>Allows you to send/recei your current messages.</li> <li><u>Send a message</u> allows Request, Refill Request, messages.</li> <li>After you fill out the messages.</li> </ul>	ve non-emerge to you send a Billing Questic sage informatic	ency messages new message f on and Health ( on you may clic	s to/from STI Medi to STI Medical Pra Question. The Ger ck Send to send th	cal Practice. Click of ctice directly. The m eral Office Message e message to STI M	n <u>Inbox</u> or <u>Sent items</u> to view, nessage types available are A e is also available for all other ledical Practice.	print, or delete ppointment types of
	d and save	or print offi	ice documents)			
Documents tab (downloa			e specific docume	nte It allowe vou to	save or print a document that	you may fill out
• The documents tab (download and take with you to the	vailable) contai office.	ns a list of offic	e specific docume	nts. It allows you to	save of print a document that	101

#### **CONFIGURING MESSAGE DISTRIBUTION LISTS**

Messages sent from the PatientPortal will appear on the To Do List in Clinical/Practice Manager for the users configured to receive that type of message. Distribution Lists are set up through the messaging dialog by completing the following steps:

- 1. Click "To-Do > New Message/Task..."
- 2. Click "To..."
- 3. Highlight the appropriate Distribution List

**NOTE**: Distribution Lists show as bolded text. The lists pertaining to the PatientPortal all start with "Patient Portal...". Options includes: Appointment Requests, Billing Questions, General Messages, Health Questions, Imports and Refill Requests. These are system defaulted distribution lists and cannot be deleted

Distribution Lists New Edit	Delete
Recipients	
ADMIN - Administrator contrie - Contries Sproul igner - Jane Doe may - May Smith MTADDMIN - MTADMIN meruzar - New User ONEP - Medical Doctor Onestar, - Docator Onestar, - Docator Patient Portal Appointment Requests Patient Portal Appiontment Requests	Public Software Update Notification: SS - Samy Surgeon SYSADMIN - System Administrator text - Teat User tom - Thomas Devaney user 1 - User 1 user 2 - User 2
Patient Portal General Messages Patient Portal Health Questions Patient Portal Imports Patient Portal Refill Requests	J
Patient Portal General Messages Patient Portal General Messages Patient Portal Health Questions Patient Portal Imports Patient Portal Refill Requests Patient Portal Refill Requests	•
Patien Portal General Messages Patien Portal Health Questions Patien Portal Health Quests Patien Portal Berlil Reguests Patient Portal Berlil Reguests Patient Portal Berlil Reguests Select All Deselect All	, ,
Patien Porta Gengy Addatation Patien Portal Result General Messages Patien Portal Health Questions Patien Portal Inports Patien Portal Refill Requests Product receive xammessau Company Science Addatation Select All Deselect Addata	)

- 4. Click "Edit..."
- 5. Add/remove users as needed by clicking the checkbox next to their name
- 6. Click "Save"
- 7. Click "OK" or "Cancel"
- 8. Click "Cancel" to close the Message Details dialog

Updated 8/11/2014

#### **RESPONDING TO MESSAGES SENT FROM THE PATIENTPORTAL**

To respond to a message that was sent via the PatientPortal:

1. Double-click on the message from the To-Do List

ALTERNATE METHOD: Highlight the applicable message and click "View".

2. Click "Reply" and type your response

**NOTE**: You can save a copy of this message in the patient's chart by selecting the "Yes and sign" option before proceeding to the next step.

3. Click "Send"

Patient: Mary Pa	tient (10040)			
Sent: 5/5/2014 : Type: Patient Po	2:22:25 PM rtal Health Question			
Contact #: (215)	333-4333			
I have a question	) about my meds, car	n someone call me?		
Sent by Mary Pa	tient			

#### NOTES:

- If you elect to save the message to the patient's chart, you will get a pop-up asking for you to name the note.
- See the section on "Configuring Message Distribution Lists" in the Appendix on page 28 for more information.
- Patients (or patient representatives) will receive an email notification regarding this activity once the message is sent.

Updated 8/11/2014

#### SENDING A MESSAGE TO THE PATIENTPORTAL

To send a message for the patient to view on the PatientPortal:

- 1. In Clinical, open the applicable patient's chart
- 2. Click "To-Do > New Patient Portal Message ... "
- 3. Enter a Subject and Message

**NOTE**: You can save a copy of this message in the patient's chart by selecting the "Yes and sign" option before proceeding to the next step.

4. Click "Send"

Fo: Mary Patient (1004)	ŋ				
šubject:					
					*
					*
Additionally save as Char	t Note? 🛛 🔘 No	🖲 Yes 💿 Y	es and sign		
			Send	Print	Cancel

#### NOTES:

- If you elect to save the message to the patient's chart, you will get a pop-up asking for you to name the note.
- Patients (or patient representatives) will receive an email notification regarding this activity once the message is sent.

Updated 8/11/2014

#### PATIENTPORTAL REQUIREMENTS FOR MEANINGFUL USE

The Meaningful Use program requires all providers (Stage 1 or Stage 2) to begin using a Patient Portal starting in 2014 and beyond. The requirements vary depending on the stage the provider is completing. Below is a basic overview of what is required. Please reference the "2014 (Stage 1 or Stage 2) Meaningful Use User Manual" which can be found on <u>www.sticomputer.com</u> after clicking "CUSTOMERS", logging in and going to the Help Documents section.

#### Stage 1 Requirement:

Objective:	Requirement:	Exclusions:	Accomplish in Clinical by
View, Download and	More than 50 percent of	Any EP who neither	<ul> <li>ChartMaker® PatientPortal</li> </ul>
Transmit	all unique patients seen	orders nor creates any	usage (Authorize patient
(Electronic Copy of	by the EP during the	of the information	through PatientPortal button on
Health Information)	EHR reporting period	listed for inclusion as	Patient tab in Practice
	are provided timely	part of the measure,	Manager)
	(within 4 business days	except for "Patient	
	after the information is	name" and "Provider's	<ul> <li>Note signing within 4 business</li> </ul>
	available to the EP)	name" and office	days
	online access to their	contact information.	
	health information		<ul> <li>Attaching SNOMED codes to</li> </ul>
	subject to the EP's		applicable Diagnoses
	discretion to withhold		
	certain information.		

**SUMMARY**: Patients must be "authorized" for the PatientPortal through Practice Manager and clinical notes should be signed within 4 business days.

**NOTE**: In order for the patient to have the ability to view their information online, they must complete registration (by clicking the link contained within the welcome email they receive).

#### Stage 2 Requirements:

Objective:	Requirement:	Exclusions:	Accomplish in Clinical by
View, Download,	<ul> <li>More than 50% of</li> </ul>	Any EP who:	<ul> <li>ChartMaker® PatientPortal</li> </ul>
Transmit (Patient	all unique patients	(1) Neither orders nor	usage (Authorize patient
Electronic Access)	seen are provided	creates any of the	through PatientPortal button on
	online access to	information listed for	Patient tab in Practice
	their health	inclusion as part of both	Manager; and Patient
	information within 4	measures, except for	submitting Refill Request or
	business days after	"Patient name" and	Health Question through
	the information is	"Provider's name and	Messages menu on
	available to the EP.	office contact	PatientPortal)
	More than 5% of all	evolude both measures	Note signing within 4 business
	- More man 5% or an	(2) Conducts 50	- Note signing within 4 business
	seen (or their	(2) Conducts 50	uays
	authorized	or her natient	- Attaching SNOMED codes to
	representatives)	encounters in a county	
	view download or	that does not have 50	applicable Diagnoses
	transmit to a third	percent or more of its	
	party their health	housing units with	
	information.	3Mbps broadband	
		availability according to	
		the latest information	
		available from the FCC	
		on the first day of the	
		EHR reporting period	
		may exclude only the	
		second measure.	
Secure Electronic	A secure message	Any EP who has no	ChartMaker® PatientPortal usage
Messaging	was sent using the	office visits during the	(Message types of "Refill
	electronic messaging	EHR reporting period,	Request" or "Health Question"
	function of CEHRT by	or any EP who	are the only two that will count)
	more than 5% of	conducts 50 percent or	
	unique patients (or	more of his or her	
	their authorized	patient encounters in a	
	representatives) seen	county that does not	
	by the EP during the	have 50 percent or	
	EHR reporting period.	more of its housing	
		units with 3Mbps	
		broadband availability	
		according to the latest	
		information available	
		from the FCC on the	
		reporting pariod	
		reporting period.	

**SUMMARY**: For the "View, Download, Transmit" measure, patients must be "authorized" for the PatientPortal through Practice Manager and clinical notes should be signed within 4 business days. Also, patients must interact with the PatientPortal by either viewing, downloading or transmitting their information to a third party. In order for the patient to accomplish this interaction, they must have completed registration. For the "Secure Electronic Messaging" measure, patients must send your practice appropriate secure messages originating through the PatientPortal.

Since ChartMaker® Clinical has the ability to auto-upload Clinical Summary and Lab Result information to the PatientPortal upon note signing, the benefit of PatientPortal usage goes beyond the two measures listed above.

Page | 32

Updated 8/11/2014

#### TIPS FOR PATIENTPORTAL ENGAGEMENT

Patient Engagement is the act of motivating your patients to be more involved with their overall care and treatment plan through resources like Patient Portals with the aim of improving health outcomes, increasing provider-patient communication and lowering health care costs. Below are several suggestions as to how to get your patients more engaged:

- Educate your staff: By educating your staff on things like how to access the portal and having everyone convey the same message, you can be assured your patients will receive the instruction necessary to get involved. Create policies and procedures that should be adhered to by all employees.
- Educate your patients: Have the discussion at check-in or while in the exam room as to what information will be available to them on the PatientPortal. Also mention what type of communication is appropriate for them to be sending you through the PatientPortal (i.e. non-emergent questions).
- Give them the resources to do it now: By providing a private area with a computer for the patient to use to complete the registration process, while still in your office, will increase the chances significantly of it getting done. Plus once the registration process is complete, your office will be able to send electronic messages to the patient through the PatientPortal increasing the chances of the patient becoming more involved.
- Utilize electronic messaging over a phone call: Instead of calling the patient to inform them their lab results are back (for example), send them a secure message through the PatientPortal instead.
- Advertise: Post signs or instructional handouts that give step-by-step instructions to the patient regarding PatientPortal usage. These handouts should include information as to *why* using the PatientPortal is beneficial to them as well as navigation information. You could also include a statement on your office voice system (i.e. a "hold" message) informing them about the PatientPortal or giving them the contact information of who to call if they have guestions about it.
- Send them home with information: Do not assume your patients will remember to register or use the PatientPortal after they leave the office. Send them home with a reminder, which should include step-by-step instructions as well as your contact information in case they have questions.
- Use the Portal as a way to follow-up with your patients: By sending the
  patient a secure message, you will increase the chances of the patient sending
  a message back to your office (getting you credit for Core Measure: Secure
  Electronic Messaging). This may also support the perception that your office
  truly cares about the well-being of its patients.
- Get patient representatives involved: Sometimes the patient is not interested or does not have the resources to access the portal but a trusted family member or friend may. Discuss the option of a patient representative accessing their information on behalf of the patient.

Page | 33

Updated 8/11/2014

### Index

#### Α

Activity History Log · 9 Add Category · 7 Add Provider · 13 Allergies · 16 Announcements · 10 Authorization Agreement · 15 Authorize · 24, 25 Authorizing a Patient Representative · 26 Available Space · 7

#### С

Clinical Summaries · 18 Clinical Summary · 21, 22 Core Measure: Clinical Summaries · 3, 18 Core Measure: Secure Electronic Messaging · 3 Core Measure: View, Download, Transmit · 3

#### D

 $\begin{array}{l} \mathsf{Demographic Information} \cdot \mathsf{16}, \mathsf{21}\\ \mathsf{Distribution Lists} \cdot \mathsf{17}, \mathsf{28}\\ \mathsf{Document Types} \cdot \mathsf{7}\\ \mathsf{Documents} \cdot \mathsf{7}, \mathsf{8}, \mathsf{22}\\ \mathsf{Documents} (\mathsf{Administrator}) \cdot \mathsf{7}\\ \mathsf{Documents} (\mathsf{Patient}) \cdot \mathsf{8}\\ \end{array}$ 

#### Ε

Email Address  $\cdot$ Email Notification  $\cdot$  10, 24, 29, 30 Employment Information  $\cdot$ Enable Maintenance Mode  $\cdot$ 

#### F

Family History  $\cdot$  16 Fees  $\cdot$  4, 23 Forgot Password?  $\cdot$  5, 22

#### Н

Home  $\cdot$  6 How to use your patient portal  $\cdot$  27

#### I

Insurance Emergency Contacts · 16

Page | 34

I

Lab Reports · 19 Lab Results · 21, 22 Log On · 5, 9

#### М

 $\begin{array}{l} \mbox{Medications} \cdot 16 \\ \mbox{Message Settings} \cdot 14 \\ \mbox{Message Types} \cdot 17, 22 \\ \mbox{Messages} \cdot 14, 17 \\ \mbox{My Account} \cdot 9, 23, 26 \end{array}$ 

#### Ν

New Message/Task  $\cdot$ New Patient Portal Message  $\cdot$  22, 30 Notifications  $\cdot$ NPI  $\cdot$ 

#### Ρ

Pages  $\cdot$ Password  $\cdot$  9, 10 Patient Data Delay  $\cdot$ Patient Engagement  $\cdot$  24, 33 Patient History  $\cdot$ Patient Representative  $\cdot$ Patient Terms of Use  $\cdot$ PatientPortal Requirements for Meaningful Use  $\cdot$ PatientPortal Usage Instructions  $\cdot$ Patients (Administrator)  $\cdot$ Patients (Patient Page)  $\cdot$ Physicians  $\cdot$ Portal Theme  $\cdot$ Practice Logo  $\cdot$ Practice Phone Number  $\cdot$ Practice Title  $\cdot$ Preferred Pharmacy  $\cdot$ Provider List  $\cdot$ 

#### R

Re-authorizing a Patient for the PatientPortal · 25 Registration Instructions · 4 Reorder Categories · 7 Reset Password · 10 Responding to Message Sent from the PatientPortal · 29 Responsible Party · 16 Restore default · 14

Updated 8/11/2014

#### 5

Send a message  $\cdot$ Send Now  $\cdot$ Sending a Message to the PatientPortal  $\cdot$ Sent items  $\cdot$ Settings  $\cdot$ Sign Out  $\cdot$ Software Support  $\cdot$  3, 36 Stage 1 Requirements  $\cdot$ Stage 2 Requirements  $\cdot$ Surgical History  $\cdot$ Suspend Data Export  $\cdot$  10, 18, 19, 21, 25 Suspend export on note signing  $\cdot$  22, 25

#### U

Unsuspending Data Export  $\cdot$  25 Updating the Email Associated with a Registered PatientPortal Account  $\cdot$  26

#### W

Welcome Message · 12 www.chartmakerpatientportal.com · 5

Resources / Notes		
Trainer:	Phone:	
STI ChartMaker Clinical Support:	1-800-487-9135 (Option 1, then Option 2)	
NOTES:		

Page | 36

Updated 8/11/2014

## **Document Change Log**

Date	Version	Changes
8/11/14	5.x	Modified the answer to FAQ: "What happens if the patient changes their email address? Do I have to re-register them?"
8/7/14	5.x	Added section on Resetting a Patient's Password, additional note in regards to the Stage 1 requirement, and added FAQ section.
7/23/14	5.x	Initial Release

Updated 8/11/2014